1980

Victor Brown, Et al. v. Leon Peterson and Peterson Development Co : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action involves a dispute as to the ownership of a strip of land 70 feet by 969 feet, shown on the plat hereafter as Parcel (1):

Plat of Property

		BRANDON PARK SUBDIVISION							
Albert Dean Parcel (3)		W. O. Nelson Parcel (4)			McDonald Brothers Parcel (5)				
		Old Fence Parcel (1) - 969 feet-							
		White Fence							
		Meadow Cove Subdivision No. 2 (Reynold Johnson) Parcel (2)							

The Plaintiffs are owners of lots in MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION, PARCEL (2) on the plat. MEADOW COVE SUBDIVISION was developed by PORTER BROTHERS in 1973 and, upon the advice of their surveyor, BUSH & GUDGELL [Record, p.12], PORTER BROTHERS accepted the east property line of the subdivision to be approximately seventy (70) feet west of the "old fence" which they had thought to be the east property line when they purchased the property [Record, p.188, 189], even though the subdivision plat does not agree with Johnson's deed description [Record, p.295]. Until PORTER BROTHERS developed MEADOW COVE SUBDIVISION in 1973, all the property shown as Parcels (1), (2), (3), (4), and (5), were open fields, divided by the "old fence" [Record, p.214, 215].

The "old fence" was built prior to 1925 when ALBERT DEAN moved onto Parcel (3) [Record, p.205], and when ALBERT DEAN purchased Parcel (3) in approximately 1935, he was informed that the "old fence" was the west boundary of his property [Record, p.206]. During the time he owned it, he farmed west to the "old fence" [Record, p.199] which was understood to be the boundary line. Upon selling the property to SOFFES in approximately 1965 [Exhibit, P-16], DEAN informed the SOFFES that they were buying property to the "old fence" [Record, p.201].

By Stipulation, it was shown that W. O. NELSON, the owner of Parcel (4), occupied, used, and farmed the land west to the "old fence" understanding the "old fence" to be the west boundary line of their property [Record, p.314, 315] for a period from 1947 through 1967.

MCDONALD BROTHERS acquired Parcel (5) in 1955 [Record, p.319] by a deed which specifically limits the warranty deed [Exhibit P-20] to "That part of the above property situated within the present existing fence lines...". Until May of 1978 [Deed Exhibit P-21], MCDONALDS occupied, farmed, or used the property west to the "old fence" [Record, p.320].

On the west side of the "old fence", REYNOLD JOHNSON purchased the property in 1943 [Exhibit D-5]. He testified that he was told that he was acquiring everything east

to the "old fence" [being all of parcels (1) and (2)] [Record, p.212]. During the entire time JOHNSON owned the property, he occupied, used, and farmed the property east to the "old fence" [Record, p.213], using the ditch which parallels the "old fence" to irrigate his crops [Record, p.214].

REYNOLD JOHNSON deeded to SOUTH MOUNTAIN LAND COMPANY in 1971 [Exhibit P-14], telling the buyer they were buying to the "old fence" on the east [Record, p.217]. JOHNSON at no time had the property surveyed, neither when he purchased it nor when he sold it [Record, p.222], but relied solely on the location of the fences to define the boundary.

No evidence to the contrary was introduced by Defendants. The uncontroverted evidence shows that, for a period covering at least forty-six (46) years from 1925, when ALBERT DEAN testified the "old fence" to be the boundary between these properties and all adjoining owners, on both sides of the fence, acquiesced in the fence line as the boundary line [Record, p.205], until 1971 when BUSH & GUDGELL platted MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION, in spite of the discrepancies in the deeds [Record, p.293-295] as defined by the engineer, GEORGE APOSHIAN, and affirmed by Defendants' engineer, CLARENCE BUSH [Record, p.402].

The surveyors agreed that the deeds on both sides of the "old fence" failed to close and had errors in the descriptions [Record, p.293, 380, 402]. On the east side of the ✓

old fence, both surveyors, Plaintiffs' and Defendants', agreed that the description for Parcel (3) overlaps into MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION by twenty-six (26) feet [Record, p.381, 382]. The description on Parcel (4) came with two different descriptions [Record 385, 386], and, if they were to use the main description (another description was in parenthesis) there was again a sixty-eight (68) foot gap [Record, p.386] which is the width of the disputed strip, and would have complied closely to the "old fence"

Regarding Parcel (5), the McDONALD tract, Defendants' counsel admitted that Defendants had a problem there [Record, p.391], and Defendants' own surveyor testified that the legal description under which the Defendants obtain Parcel (5) only goes to the "old fence" [Record p.391, 395] and does not go to the 40-acre line (white fence); yet the Trial Court has quieted title for Defendants to the seventy (70) feet west of the "old fence" without any evidence or legal basis for the claim, confirmed by the 1962 deed to McDONALD BROTHERS, their predecessor, which provided:

Grantors only warrant that part of the above described property situated within the present existing fence lines now located upon the property, and as located by an official survey of the property made by Bush & Gudgell Engineers, 263 South 2nd East Salt Lake City, Utah, and grantors do not warrant title of the above property situated outside of the fence lines. [Exhibit P-20]

thus confirming that the "old fence" was confirmed as the boundary line between these properties as per the Quit Claim Deeds from JOHNSON and PORTER BROTHERS.

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO RULE ON THE ISSUE OF BOUNDARY BY ACQUIESCENCE

In the Amended Pre-Trial Order, it was ordered that the issues to be decided were as follows:

a. The Plaintiffs' claim title to the disputed property, based upon the doctrine of boundary line by acquiescence. [Record, p.56]

The Plaintiffs claiming that boundary line by acquiescence had vested ownership in Plaintiffs' predecessor in interest, and that the interest of the prior owners has been conveyed to the Plaintiffs heretofore by proper deeds. [Record, p.56]

b. Defendants claim title to the disputed property on the basis of surveys made by BUSH & GUDGELL ENGINEERS, Salt Lake City, Utah, based upon descriptions contained in applicable deeds. (Emphasis added) [Record, p.57]

And the Court ordered that the above order "shall supercede the pleadings herein, and shall govern the trial of this action." [Record, p.57]

Contrary to the Pre-Trial Order, an examination of the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law shows that the issue of boundary by acquiescence was ignored, and the Court erroneously made findings which infer that Plaintiffs were claiming to have gained title to the disputed strip of land through their purchase of lots in MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION [Findings of Fact, Nos. 2,3,4,5,6,7; Record, p.66]; also, Conclusions of Law, Nos. 1 and 2; Record, p.68].

The parties stipulated during trial [Record, p.249, 250] that the Plaintiffs were relying upon their ownership to the disputed strip solely through the Quit Claim Deeds from REYNOLD JOHNSON [P-15] and PORTER BROTHERS [Exhibit D-9], through which it is alleged the boundary line by acquiescence was established.

The Court so agreed that the entire case should stand or fall on the issue of whether the Plaintiffs' predecessors in interest acquired ownership of the disputed strip of land [Record, p.242, lines 3-9 and lines 23-24].

After three days of receiving evidence concerning the boundary by acquiescence issue, the Court erroneously failed to rule on the issue of whether or not Plaintiffs' predecessors in interest gained ownership of the disputed strip through boundary by acquiescence, in violation of the Amended Pre-Trial Order, and the overwhelming burden of the evidence.

The courts have made clear that, where the Pre-Trial order purports to state the issues to be tried, the trial should be confined to such issues, and other issues should be eliminated from consideration. The Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 16, provides:

The court shall make an order which recites the action taken at the conference, the amendments allowed to the pleadings, and the agreements made by the parties as to any of the matters considered, and which limits the issues for trial to those not disposed of by admissions or agreements of counsel; and such order when entered controls the subsequent course of the action, unless modified at the trial to prevent manifest injustice. The Court in its discretion may establish by rule a pre-trial calendar on which actions may be placed for consideration as above provided. (Emphasis added.)

In this case, the Pre-Trial Order was stipulated to by both parties without objection. This policy is stated also in 62 AM JUR, Pre-Trial Conference, §34, p.666:

...the court may and should exclude evidence in support of other issues;...no findings of fact can be made upon other issues...

See also KAISER ALUMINUM & CHEMICAL SALES v. LORDS, 460 P.2d 321, 23 U.2d 152 (1969); 22 ALR 2d, 599, 603 §2.

In opposition to the Court's Amended Pre-Trial Order, no findings were made on the issue of boundary by acquiescence, and Findings of Fact Nos. 1 and 2, and Conclusions of Law Nos. 1 and 2 [Record, p.66] base the denial of Plaintiff's claim upon Plaintiff's notice of the specific boundaries of MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION when, in fact,

Plaintiff's claim of title has nothing to do with their purchase of lots in MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION, but relies on the title of their predecessors gained through boundary by acquiescence [Record, p.250]. The Court's Findings and Conclusions are erroneous and in violation of the amended Pre-Trial Order.

II. THE UNCONTROVERTED EVIDENCE SHOWS THAT BOUNDARY
BY ACQUIESCENCE ACCRUED TO PLAINTIFFS'
PREDECESSORS IN INTEREST

The legal doctrine of boundary by acquiescence has been recognized in Utah and clearly defined. In an article in the UTAH LAW REVIEW, Volume 1975, Spring, No. 1 at page 224, the doctrine of boundary by acquiescence and the Utah cases defining the same were reviewed and discussed. This Court has made clear that a boundary established by acquiescence is binding not only on the acquiescing owners, but also on their grantees [JOHNSON v. SESSIONS, 25 U.2d 133, 477, P.2d 788 (1970)], and it may not be changed by renewing an old dispute [PROVONSHA v. PITMAN, 6 U.2d 26, 305 P.2d 486 (1957)].

In the landmark case of FUOCO v. WILLIAMS, 15 U.2d 156, 389 P.2d 143 (1964), this Court defined the elements for establishing boundary by acquiescence, stating:

[1] This court over a period of years has formulated four elements which must be shown by the person claiming title by acquiescence in order to raise the presumption that a binding agreement exists settling a dispute or uncertain boundary. These elements are: (1) occupation up to a visible line marked definitely by monuments, fences or buildings and (2) acquiescence in the line as the boundary (3) for a long period of years (4) by adjoining land owners.

The evidence introduced during the trial in this matter showed, without any rebutting evidence: Element (1) the occupation of the property on both sides of the "old fence" with the owners using and farming their respective land up to the "old fence"; Element (2) that the owners understood that the legal descriptions were defective, but accepted and acquiesced in the "old fence" as the boundary line.

With each owner having understood the "old fence" to be the boundary between the properties [Record 198, p.211, 314] and one owner, McDONALD BROTHERS [Parcel (5)], even had notice in their deed [Exhibit P-20] that the warranty deed did not warrant title to anything outside the fences located by BUSH & GUDGELL, and CLARENCE BUSH then testified that the McDONALD deed went to the "old fence" [Record, p. 395]

Element (3) that the acquiescence was for a long period of time at least covering from 1925 when ALBERT DEAN moved to Parcel (3) [Record, p.204] testifying that the "old fence" was in place at that time [Record, p.198]. And with

each of the principal owners on both sides of the fence acknowledging this fence to be the boundary without question or contrary evidence until in 1973, when BUSH & GUDGELL surveyed for PORTER BROTHERS, and decided to locate the east property line of MEADOW COVER NO. 2 SUBDIVISION approximately seventy (70) feet west of the "old fence". Accordingly, the boundary fence had been recognized and acquiesced as the "old fence" for at least forty-eight (48) years; and Element (4) the acquiescence was evidenced by all the adjoining landowners, REYNOLD JOHNSON [Parcels (1) and (2)], ALBERT DEAN [Parcel (3)], W. O. NELSON [Parcel (4)], and by the actual deed of McDONALD BROTHERS [Parcel (5)]. Thus all four elements of boundary by acquiescence were established.

Not one witness was introduced by the Defendats to refute the existence of the four elements of boundary by acquiescence, although this Court has ruled in KING v. FRONK, 14 U.2d 135, 378 P.2d 893 (1963), that if these four elements exist, then it is incumbent upon him who assails the title by acquiescence to show by competent evidence that a boundary was not thus established.

This Court has made clear that the doctrine of boundary by acquiescence applies, even though the adjoining owners could not show that the acquiescing parties had ever agreed on the boundary's location. Once the elements of the doctrine are established, the Court presumes that the par-

ties, at some earlier time, had entered into an express agreement to establish the line. FUOCO v. WILLIAMS, supra.; NUNLEY v. WALKER, 13 U.2d 105, 369 P.2d 117 (1962); HUMMEL v. YOUNG, 1 U.2d 237, 265 P.2d 410 (1953); ELSBURG v. BATES, 121 Utah 123, 239 P.2d 205 (1951); BROWN v. MILLINER, 120 Utah 16, 232 P.2d 202 (1951).

This Court has further made clear that a fence still may be recognized as a boundary line even though the fence is old, the wires down, and the posts rotted away. JOHNSON REAL ESTATE CO. v. NIELSON, 10 U.2d 380, 353 P.2d 918 (1960). In the present case, the fence was old and sometimes testified to be in poor repair, but remained as a clearly definable fence line, even to the time of trial [Record, p.280] and in addition, is paralleled by an irrigation ditch which runs along the west side of the "old fence" [Record, p.207, 213].

Accordingly, all four elements of boundary line by acquiescence were shown to exist, without a single item of rebutting evidence; and yet the trial court failed to make a finding or judgment regarding this, the Plaintiffs' only issue of boundary by acquiescence, and should be required to enter judgment in accordance with the Pre-Trial Order to decide whether the line was established by acquiescence.

III. BOUNDARY BY ACQUIESCENCE HAVING OCCURRED,
OWNERSHIP HAS NOW PASSED TO THE PLAINTIFFS

The uncontroverted evidence shows that the boundary line of the "old fence" was established by acquiescing owners many years prior to the time BUSH & GUDGELL ENGINEERS in 1973, first decided to establish the east line of MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION. This Court, in the case of PROVONSHA v. JOHNSON, 6 U.2d 26, 305 P.2d 486 (1956), dealt with a boundary dispute, such as the instant case, which arose after the fence had been in place for some 35 or more years. The Court held as p.29:

If by that time a boundary by acquiescence had been established, as we think it had, under principles heretofore announced by this court, succeeding grantees could not marshall their disagreements or misunderstandings to destroy that established boundary.

Again the uncontested evidence shows that from at least 1925 until 1973, the "old fence" was established as the boundary line by acquiescence. The owner who occupied, farmed, and used the disputed strip at the time the boundary line was established, was REYNOLD JOHNSON, who in 1943 purchased the land without survey and defined by his predecessor to go east to the "old fence" [Record, p.211].

Having established the boundary line, JOHNSON became the owner of the disputed strip of land. When JOHNSON deeded

the land to (BUCHANAN) SOUTH MOUNTAIN LAND CO., in 1971 [Exhibit P-14], the legal description he used did not describe the disputed strip. Therefore, the ownership of the disputed strip either remained with JOHNSON, or it passed to SOUTH MOUNTAIN LAND CO., and then to PORTER BROTHERS, the developers of MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION. If ownership remained with JOHNSON, JOHNSON then conveyed it to Plaintiffs by his quit claim Deed [Exhibit P-15]. If ownership of the disputed strip passed to PORTER BROTHERS, by virtue of the series of deeds, it still is now vested in the Plaintiffs because PORTER BROTHERS also deeded Quit Claim to the Plaintiffs [Exhibit D-9].

Therefore, if boundary by acquiescence occurred, and there is no contrary evidence, the actions of BUSH & GUDGELL, or the Defendants, cannot alter the already established boundary line, the "old fence" and the trial court's ruling, without any contrary evidence, would allow a trial court to terminate the effect of the doctrine of boundary by acquiescence in Utah. The trial court should be required to rule on the issue of boundary by acquiescence.

IV. THE DECISION OF THE TRIAL COURT IS UNSUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE

In order for the trial court to quiet title to the disputed strip of land, Defendants must introduce evidence of

a legal claim to the disputed strip. The Defendants purchased their property in three pieces, shown heretofore on the plat as Parcels (3), (4), and (5). The description contained in Defendants' deeds show that Parcel (3) overlaps into MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION by twenty-six (26) feet, which does include that portion of the disputed strip [Record, p.382].

The Defendants' description for Parcel (4) contained two descriptions. The primary set of distances left the west boundary line sixty-eight (68) feet short of the MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION, being almost identical to the "old fence" line [Record, p.386]. Only by using a secondary set of distances which were in parentheses [Record p.386, lines 7-11] could the surveyor get the description to comply with the "40-acre line" or rear of MEADOW COVER NO. 2 SUBDIVISION [Record, p.386, lines 1-11].

However, on Parcel (5), the McDONALD tract, the Defendants' attorney admitted Defendants have problem with that piece [Record, 391, lines 8-9 and 17-20]. Further, Defendants' engineer, CLARENCE BUSH, testified that the deed by which the Defendants acquired Parcel (5) [Exhibit D-27] fits the "old fence" and does not include the disputed stip to the 40-acre (or MEADOW COVE NO. 2 SUBDIVISION) line [Record p.395].

No evidence was introduced by the Defendants to show any legal claim that Parcel (5) extended west of the "old fence" to include that portion of the disputed strip. Yet the trial court granted a quiet title judgment to Defendants the entire disputed strip of land, without requiring Defendants to show any evidence of ownership of that portion of the property. Even if the court had found that the boundary line had not been established by acquiescence, the judgment was in error because Defendants showed no evidence of title to the South.

Accordingly, the Defendants failed to sustain their burden. This Court has ruled that in quiet title actions, a party must prevail on the strength of their own title. MI-CHAE L v. SALT LAKE INVESTMENT CO., 345 P.2d 200, 9 U.2d 370 (1959); MERCUR COALITION MINING v. CANNON 112 Utah 13, 184 P.2d 341 (1947); HOMEOWNERS LOAN CORPORATION v. DUDLEY, 105 Utah 108, 141 P.2d 160 (1943). Even if the Plaintiffs had failed to prove boundary by acquiescence, the Defendants were not entitled to a quiet title judgment without showing title to the entire strip.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, it is respectfully submitted that the trial court's judgment should be reversed, and judgment entered for the Plaintiffs; or, in the alternative, a new trial ordered.