1980

Victor Brown, Et al. v. Leon Peterson and Peterson Development Co. : Brief of Respondents Leon Peterson and Peterson Development Co.

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This action was commenced by Plaintiffs-Appellants, all property owners of Lots 36 through 46 of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision, against Defendant-Respondent Peterson Development Company to obtain title to a strip of land ("the disputed property") between the easternmost boundary lines of their respective lots and an old fence.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

In the lower court, the Honorable David K. Winder granted judgment in favor of Respondent and quieted title to the disputed property in Peterson Development Company.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Respondent seeks affirmance of the Findings, Conclusions and Judgment of the trial court.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS

Respondent does not materially dispute the statement of facts contained in Appellant's brief, with the exception of certain statements which Respondent deems either to be inconsistent with the actual facts or self-serving conclusions. Respondent also deems the following facts found by the Court to be material:

Each of the Appellants is the owner of a home and lot (Lots 36 through 46) in the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision, Salt

Lake County, Utah. (R. 66) The official plat of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision, No. 2544093, was recorded and filed at the request of Security Title Company on June 1, 1973, at 3:53 p.m., Book 73-6 at Page 15 of the official records of the Salt Lake County Recorder's Office. (Id.) Each of the Appellants executed the final closing documents in connection with their respective lots after June 1, 1973, the recording date of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision Plat. (Id.)

Sometime prior to April 3, 1973, Bush & Gudgell Engineers ("Bush & Gudgell") was employed by Porter Brothers Realty & Construction, Inc., a Utah corporation ("Porter Brothers"), the developer of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision, to make a survey of the proposed Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision. (Id.) On April 3, 1973, as a result of said survey, Robert B. Jones, a licensed land surveyor with Bush & Gudgell, certified that the true and correct location of the easternmost boundary of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision is as follows, to-wit:

Beginning at the North Quarter Corner of Section 21, Township 3 South, Range 1 East, Salt Lake Base and Meridian, and running thence South 89°51'21" East 1318.385 feet to the East line of the Northwest quarter of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 21; thence South 0°36'40" East along said East line 989.19 feet. (Id.)

None of the deeds conveying to Porter Brothers the parcels of land comprising the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision contain legal descriptions which extend the easternmost boundary line beyond the east line of the Northwest Quarter of the Northeast Corner of Section 21, Township 3 South, Range 1 East, Salt Lake Base and Meridian ("the east survey line"). (Id.)

In connection with the survey of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision, Bush & Gudgell, through its employees and agents, caused survey stakes and hubs to be placed at the lot corners along the easternmost boundary lines of Lots 36 through 46 so that prospective purchasers of those lots could determine the easternmost boundaries thereof; and no such survey stakes were placed by Bush & Gudgell or its employees beyond the east survey line. (Id.) In connection with the initial phases of the survey of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision, Bush & Gudgell caused a preliminary plat to be drawn on which an old fence line ("the old fence line"), located roughly 60 to 70 feet beyond the east survey line, was shown. (Id.) After having observed the old fence line, Robert B. Jones contacted Porter Brothers and Security Title Company to determine if any deed conveying to Porter Brothers or its predecessors the parcels of land comprising the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision contained descriptions extending the easternmost boundaries of said parcels beyond the east survey line to the old fence line. (R. 67) Because Security Title Company could not produce any deed extending the easternmost boundary of any parcel comprising the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision beyond the east survey line, Robert B. Jones informed the principals of Porter Brothers that the true and correct easternmost boundary line of the parcels conveyed to Porter Brothers was the east survey line, not the old fence line. (Id.)

Porter Brothers purchased parcels of land comprising Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision from South Mountain Corporation on

the basis of a price per surveyed acre as determined by a Bush & Gudgell survey, which survey did not include any land beyond the east survey line and which further calculated the acreage to be purchased by Porter Brothers at 24.740 acres. (Id.) On May 8, 1978, Reynolds Q. Johnson and Mildred Argyle Johnson executed a quit-claim deed purporting to convey the disputed property to the Appellants. (Id.) On May 12, 1978, R. Gordon Porter, President, and J. Stanton Porter, Secretary, of Porter Brothers, executed a quit-claim deed purporting to convey the disputed property to Appellants. (Id.) With respect to the quit-claim deeds from both Mr. and Mrs. Johnson and Porter Brothers, Appellants neither paid money nor gave anything of value to the grantors. (Id.) Sometime after April 3, 1973, Porter Brothers caused a fence to be constructed along the east survey line ("the white fence"), which fence coincides with the Bush & Gudgell certification of the easternmost boundary of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision. (Id.)

At the conclusion of the trial of this matter, the Honorable David K. Winder held that from and after June 1, 1973, at 3:53 p.m., Appellants were charged with actual or constructive notice of the boundary descriptions contained in the official plat of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision, including the specific boundaries and distances shown thereon with respect to Lots 36 through 46; that none of the Appellants could reasonably have relied upon the old fence line as being the true easternmost boundary line of their respective lots in the Meadow Cove No. 2

Subdivision; and that greater injustice and inequity would result from finding that the old fence line is the true boundary line than would result from establishing the boundary in accordance with the true survey line. (R. 68) Title to the disputed property was quieted in the Respondents. (Id.)

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY QUIETED TITLE IN THE DISPUTED PROPERTY IN PETERSON DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

A rather extensive analysis of the equitable doctrine of boundary by acquiescence appeared in a recent Utah Law Review article, 1975 Utah Law Review 221, 224 et seq. The purposes for and policies behind the doctrine of boundary by acquiescence are set forth by this Court in Olsen v. Park Daughters Investment Company, 29 Utah 2d 421, 511 P.2d 145 (1973):

"The doctrine of boundary by acquiescence is based on the policy that peace and good order of society require that there be stability . . . in the ownership and the occupation of lands. . . . (B)oundary lines which have been long established and accepted by those who should be concerned should be left undisturbed in order to leave at rest matters which may have resulted in controversy and litigation. . . .

. . . .

It is our opinion that the policy of encouraging peace and good order and of discouraging trouble and controversy demand that (boundary by acquiescence) be accepted as the correct doctrine, and that it need not depend upon rationalization as ideas of estoppel, presumed agreements, lost grants or other fictional concepts." Id. at 147 (Emphasis added)

This Court elaborated upon the doctrine of boundary by acquiescence in two recent decisions: Florence v. Hiline Equipment Company, 582 P.2d 998 (1978), and Hobson v. Panguitch Lake Corporation, 530 P.2d 792 (1975). In the Florence case, supra, one of the Defendants, James Saracino, sought title to a disputed strip of land beyond the boundary of his subdivision lot out to an old fence line. The trial court determined that the doctrine of boundary by acquiescence did not apply to the facts of that case. Florence, supra, at 1000. Affirming the trial court, this Court stated:

"A fence may be maintained between adjoining proprietors for the sake of convenience without the intention of fixing boundaries. Thus agreement to or acquiescence in the establishment of a fence, not as a line marking the boundary, but as a line for other purposes are acquiescence in the mere existence of the fence as a mere barrier, does not preclude parties in claiming up to the true boundary line.

A further reason for the court ruling as it did is that there is no allegation that any of these specific parties relied upon the fence as being the true boundary. Both Saracino and plaintiffs knew where the true boundary was located and treated it as such. Defendant Groll purchased from Saracino a subdivision lot bordering the disputed boundary line. He testified that the property conveyed to him by deed went only to the legal description, and that he has not been deprived of any footage for which he bargained. This gave rise to the trial court's conclusion "[t]hat none of the parties' interests will be interrupted or cause any inequities by holding that each party is to be the owner of their legally described tracts." This is consistent with our analysis of the facts in Hobson v. Panguitch Lake Corporation. In weighing the equities in that case we stated as follows:

We cannot see the circumstances as justifying a conclusion that the parties

acquiesced in regarding this fence as a boundary for the sufficiently long period of time, nor that any greater injustice will result from rectifying the error and establishing the boundary in accordance with the true survey line as described in the Deeds, than would result from depriving the defendants of the property conveyed to them.

Likewise, on the facts now before us, we must conclude as did the trial court that the parties have not by their actions relied upon the fence as being the true and actual boundary. Equity will not allow us to do other than to enforce those subtle intentions." Id. (Emphasis added)

The Findings, Conclusions, and Judgment of the trial court in the instant case bring it squarely within the holdings of Florence and Hobson, supra. Appellants in their brief have attempted to characterize the doctrine of boundary of acquiescence a "legal" rather than "equitable" doctrine. What the trial court must do in any boundary by acquiescence case is, as this court stated in Florence, supra, "weigh the equities". 582 P.2d at 1000. The equities must be substantially in favor of the party claiming boundary by acquiescence because, as this court stated in Hobson, supra, ". . . it must be appreciated that the recognition of such boundaries does have the effect of transferring ownership of disputed strips of property without compliance with the statute of frauds; and it may be at variance with recorded conveyances." 530 P.2d at 794.

There are a number of facts found by the trial court which cause the equities in the instant case to weigh heavily in favor of Respondent and justify the trial court's quieting title to the disputed property in Respondent. First, Appellants

neither paid money nor gave anything of value to the grantors for the quit-claim deeds which they received from Reynolds Q. Johnson, Mildred Argyle Johnson, and Porter Brothers. (R. 67) Second, and more significantly, as the trial judge pointed out near the conclusion of the trial of this case,

"Mr. Walker, I realize your clients are lay people dealing with a real estate agency, but they are charged with notice of what is recorded, aren't they? Every one of these people, at the time that they closed, there was of record in the County Recorder's Office a subdivision plat which set out the boundary to the white fence. And all of them, if they knew what they are charged with notice of, could have gone to Porter Brothers before they paid their money or allowed the thing to close and the construction loan to close and say, "We didn't get what we wanted." About half of them, as I recall the testimony, knew before-- even without being charged with notice of the subdivision plat, they saw this fence going up and they knew there was a dispute. It seems to me that they should have, at that point, before they allowed their loans to close, gone down and found out what they were buying and get out of it if they had to. I know that is easy to say, to get out of it when you have moved into a house and that sort of thing. But at least, they could get a rebate or settle the thing at that time.

But if this is recorded on May 30th, 1973, as it was--and the evidence is undisputed on that-- aren't they charged with knowledge of that at that time?" (R. 427, 428)

On the basis of the foregoing, Respondent respectfully submits that the trial court, ". . . having heard the testimony of witnesses; having received a number of exhibits; having heard the argument of counsel; having thereafter taken the matter under advisement; having reviewed the exhibits and the court's own notes relating to the testimony given at the trial; and having read the authority cited by counsel during the trial;. . ."


correctly concluded that from and after June 1, 1973, at 3:53 p.m., Appellants were charged with actual or constructive notice of the boundary descriptions contained in the official plat of the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision, including the specific boundaries and distances shown thereon with respect to Lots 36 through 46; that none of the Appellants could reasonably have relied upon the old fence line as being the true easternmost boundary line of their respective lots in the Meadow Cove No. 2 Subdivision; that greater injustice and inequity would result from finding that the old fence line is the true boundary line than would result from establishing the boundary in accordance with the true survey line; and that title to the disputed property should be quieted in the Respondent Peterson Development Company. (R. 66-68)

CONCLUSION

Respondent respectfully submits that the Honorable David K. Winder, sitting as trier of both fact and law in the instant case, carefully weighed the equities before concluding that title to the disputed property should be quieted in the Respondent Peterson Development Company. It is further submitted that Appellants have failed in the instant appeal to demonstrate that the Findings, Conclusions, and Judgment of the trial court were clearly erroneous. Consequently, the judgment of the trial court should be affirmed.